
 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0    PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5    BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0    FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3    RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0    POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3    PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

701 Civic Center Blvd. 

Suisun City, California  94585 

Incorporated October 9, 1868 

CITY COUNCIL 

Pedro “Pete” M. Sanchez, Mayor 

Michael J. Hudson, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day  

Sam Derting 

Michael A. Segala 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OF 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND 

HOUSING AUTHORITY MEETINGS 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the December 17, 2012 special meeting of the Suisun City 

Council, the Suisun City Successor Agency and the Suisun City Housing Authority at 6:00 p.m. is 

canceled. 

 

For further information, please contact the City Clerk’s Department at 707 421-7300. 

 

 

Dated:  December 17, 2012 ___________________________________ 

 Anita Skinner, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL

Pedro "Pete" M. Sanchez, Mayor
Mike Hudson, Mayor Pro-Tem
Jane Day
Michael A. Segala
Lori WIlSOll AGENDA

CIn COUNCIL MEETING

First and Third Tuesday
Every Month

REGULAR MEETING OF THE

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2012

7:00P.M.

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CMC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA

(Next Ord. No. - 723)
(Next City Council Res. No. 2012 - 101)

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2012 -14)
(Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2012 - 04)

ROLLCALL
Council/ Board Members
Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation

PUBLIC COMMENT
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this
agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker).

REPORTS: (Informational items only.)

1. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff.

2. Mayor/Council -ChairlBoardmembers.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers ! Boardmembers
should be identified at this time.)

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS
(presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).

3. Introduction and Swearing in of new Suisun City Police Officers Lindsey Sanford and Joe
Elliott - (Dadisho).

DEPARTMENTS, AREA CODE (707)

ADMINISTRATION 421-7300 mPLANNING 421·7335 mBUILDING 421-7310" FINANCE 421-7320
FIRE 425-9133" RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 421-7200 "POLICE 421-7373 iii PUBLIC WORKS 421-7340

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 421-7309 FAX 421-7366



December 18, 2012 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2

4. Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting:

a. Presentation of Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Finance Department Staff.

b. Presentation of Award of Financial Reporting Achievement to Elizabeth Luna, Senior
Accountant.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Successor Agency

5. Receive and Accept the "All Other Funds" Due Diligence Review ofthe Former
Redevelopment Agency - (Garben).

Housing Authority

6. Housing Authority's Response to the Detennination Made by the California Department of
Finance to the Suisun City Successor Agency's Low- and Moderate-Income Housing Due
Diligence Review which May Include:

a. Authority Adoption ofResolution No. HA 2012-_: Adopting the First Amendment to
the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. HA 2012-02 Appropriating Funds to be Paid
Under Protest from the Almond Gardens Fund - (Garben).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency / Housing Authority

7. Council/Agency Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of the
Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing
Authority held on December 4,2012 - (Hobson).

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency

8. Council/Agency Approval of the November 2012 Payroll Warrants in the amount of
$781,944.73. Council/Agency Approval of the November 2012 Payable Warrants in the
amount of$643,799.31-(Finance).

GENERAL BUSINESS

9. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-_: Adopting a Complete Streets Policy
(Wooden).

PUBLIC HEARINGS

ADJOURNMENT

A complete packet of information contaioing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of
this meeting, and provided to the City COlin.cU, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council
IAgency/Authority rv[eeting at Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., SUiSUIl City. Agenda related writings or
docmnents provided to a majority of the CouncillBoard/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a
Council!Agency/Anthority meeting regardiog any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection
duriog normal business hours. An agenda packet is also located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the
meeting for public review. The City may charge photocopying charges for requested copies of such docmnents.



December 18, 2012

PLEASE NOTE:

City Council/Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3

1. TIle City CounciVAgency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 11:00 P.M. Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after
the 11 :00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that
all items scheduled wiU be discussed within the time allowed.

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals ""ith special needs may call 421-7300.
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at:

City Hall Fire Station Senior Center
701 Civic Center Boulevard 621 Pintail Drive 318 Merganser Drive





Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Suisun City
California

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report

for the Fiscal Yem' Ended

June 30, 2011

A.Certificate ofAchievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers

Association ofthe United States and Canada to
government nnits and pnblic employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the !lighest
standards in government accounting

and fmancial repclting,

FEM 4
ATTACF.MENT A

~P~
President

~~~
Executive Director

1



@

The Government Finance Officers Association
of the United States and Canada

I

presents tlUs
1

N

AWMU) OF FINANCIAL RjEPORTING ACHIEVEMENT
, to
I

I

Elizabeth N. Luna
Senior~ccountant

City ofSuis,* City, California

,

'fhg .qward0/Financial RepQr(ingAchievemen.t ispresented by Jhe Government Fbumce Officer.s
k,o,iationlo th. indlvld",,{(,) t/4$ignl11.d as ms~'Umen/a/ in their I{,,,,ernmell/ I/l/il achfevilll{, a
CertificaJe o[A()hfe:v~menllQrExcellem;e JIZ- Financial Repor/fllg. A Certificate ofAchitwemeni
is pr~enled lQ Jhosr: gctvenummt tmlrs whQS~ (1.l).JJU(l1 jin«ncfalf?Pcir!s mejudged to adhere. to
pr0gt:am standards and repl:esenJs Ihe. hfglwst award In g()vemmemjlnanclal reporting.

EX~'iutiv~ Dir~etor

I

Dat1 S~pt~ll1ber26, 2012

~.,.?~

:';H
>-3 >-3

~[;1
0:: ...

§
tJj



ITEM 5

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

MEETING DATE: December 18, 2012

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AGENDA ITEM: Receive and Accept the "All Other Funds" Due
Diligence Review ofthe Former Redevelopment Agency.

FISCALIMI'ACT: None.

BACKGROUND: Assembly Bill 1484 (AB 1484), the redevelopment budget trailer bill
amending Assembly Bi11lX 26 (AB IX 26), was signed into law on June 27,2012. AB 1484
required that the Successor Agency hire an outside qualified licensed accountant to perform a
comprehensive "Due Diligence Review" of the Low- and Moderate-Income Housing Fund, which
was completed in October. AB 1484 also requires the Successor Agency to hire an outside
qualified licensed accountant to perform a comprehensive "Due Diligence Review" on all other
funds of the former redevelopment agency (the "DDR"). The accounting firm hired must be
approved by the County Auditor-Controller. The purpose of the review is to determine the
unobligated fund balance that will be available for distribution to taxing entities.

AB 1484 requires the DDR be submitted to the Oversight Board, the County Auditor-Controller,
the State Controller's Office, and the State Department of Finance (DOF) by December 17, 2012.
The Oversight Board has until January 15,2012, to review, approve, and transmitto the DOF and
the Auditor-Controller a determination of the amount of cash and cash equivalents available for
disbursement to taxing entities.

The DOF review of the determination provided by the Oversight Board will be completed no later
than April 1, 2013. Any decision to overturn detenuinatiolls made by the Oversight Board to
authorize a Successor Agency to retain assets or funds will be conveyed to the Oversight Board
and Successor Agency via a letter. Successor Agencies have five days from receipt of the
decisions to request "meet and confer."

STAFF REPORT: In FY 2010-11, the City and Redevelopment Agency retained the accounting
firm ofVavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, LLP (VTD) to perform the annual audit for the City and
the Agency. Since VTD is familiar with the assets and financial components of the Successor
Agency, and is familiar with and participated in the development ofthe procedures to complete the
Due Diligence Reviews, the County Auditor-Controller was asked to approve and did approve
VTD to perform the DDR on behalf of the Successor Agency. It should be noted that VTD
performed the Due Diligence Review ofthe Low- and Moderate-Income Housing Fund.

As of this writing, a draft of the Due Diligence Review of all other RDA funds was not complete,
but is expected to be available by the December 17, 2012, deadline. A copy will be distributed or
available for review with the City Clerk upon publication. There is no action of the Successor
Agency Board required; however, the information is provided to the Successor Agency Board in
order to ensure transparency ofthe process.

PREPARED BY:
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:

3

Jason Garben, Economic Development Director 9Pt
Suzanne Bragdon, Executive Director S'

.x:
~



ITEM 5

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Successor Agency receive and accept the
"All Other Funds" Due Diligence Review.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Due Diligence Review of the Low- and Moderate-Income Housing Fund (Available Upon
Publication).

4



ITEM 6

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

MEETING DATE: December 18, 2012

HOUSING AUTHORITY AGENDA ITEM: Housing Authority's Response to the
Determination Made by the Califomia Department of Finance to the Suisun City Successor
Agency's Low- and Moderate-hlcome Housing Due Diligence Review wbich May illclude:

a. Authority Adoption of Resolution No. HA 2012-_: Adopting the First Amendment to
the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. HA 2012-02 to Appropriate $975,474 to be
Paid under Protest from the Almond Gardens Fund.

FISCAL IMPACT: The maximum amount of money at risk is $975,474, which would be paid
from the Almond Gardens apartment complex (Fund 907). A final determination from the State
Department of Finance regarding the actual amount was not available at the time of this writing,
but it will be available by the meeting date.

BACKGROUND: Assembly Bill 1484 (AB 1484), the redevelopment budget trailer bill
amending Assembly Bill IX 26 (AB 26), was signed into law on June 27, 2012. The purpose of
these bills is to dissolve the redevelopment agencies throughout Califoruia. Among many other
requirements, AB 1484 obligated the Successor Agency to hire an outside qualified licensed
accountant to perform a comptehensive "Due Diligence Review" (DDR) of the Low- and
Moderate-illcome Housing Fund (LMll-IF), which was completed last October. The purpose ofthe
DDR was to detemrine the amount of LMll-IF cash and cash equivalents available to retum to the
County in order to be distributed to the other affected taxing entities. As prescribed in AB 1484,
the DDR was submitted to the Oversight Board, the County Auditor-Controller, the State
Controller's Office, and the State Department of Finance (DOF). As required AB 1484, the
Oversight Board also confirmed that the cash and cash equivalents identified in the DDR were
determined in accordance with the methods prescribed in AB 1484. The DDR revealed the
Successor Agency had cash and cash equivalents on hand available for distribution in the amount
of$I,357.

ill early November, the DOF completed its review of the DDR and sent a letter to staff via email
on the evening of November 8, 2012, (the letter is dated November 7, 2012) indicating an
additional $975,474 should be remitted to the County Auditor-Controller. The additional
$975,474 consists of cash and cash equivalents associated with the Almond Gardens apartment
complex (Attachment 1). All of tills cash was generated through rents paid by the tenants of the
complex; no tax increment revenues have ever been deposited in tills fund. Staff iuitiated the
"Meet and Confer" process with the DOF to contest the requirement to remit the $975,474. As of
tills writing, staffhad not received a final determination from the DOF on tbis matter. Pursuant to
state law, DOF's final determination is due on Saturday, December 15,2012. The Authority has
five business days from that date to determine how to respond to the DOF's final detemrination.

PREPARED BY:
REVIEWED/APPROVED BY:

Jason D. Garben, Economic Development Director{lbft
5 Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager S~



ITEM 6

STAFF REPORT: Again pursuant to AB 1484, the Successor AgencylHousing Authority must
remit funds within five business days of receiving the DOF's final determination of the amount
required to be transferred. Under current law, there are no due process rights that would allow
the Authority to appeal the DOF's staff determination. If the funds identified for transmission
are not remitted, the DOF may withhold sales and use tax allocations, as well as property tax
allocations that come to the City's General Fund. This provision of the law is currently being
litigated by the League of California Cities.

The attached AAR would provide staff with the authority to remit up to the total amount of
$975,474 held with the Housing Authority. In the event that the DOF withdraws the claim or
reduces the claim as a result of the information provided through the "Meet and Confer" process,
only the amount demanded by the DOF would be remitted.

Alternatives Available to the Authority

The Authority has the following alternatives:

1. Adopt the attached resolution that would authorize staff to remit under protest up to the
fullOunt that nOF withholds; OR

2. Fail to adopt the resolution and direct staff to work with the Authority's legal counsel to
take action against the state.

The consequences ofthese actions are described below:

1. An amount up to $975,474 would be remitted under protest to the County to be distributed
to the taxing entities including the City's General Fund which could receive as much as
$146,000.

2. The disputed cash would remain in Fund 907. The City's General Fund would lose as
much as $975,474 (unless the litigation is totally successful). Some legal costs could be
paid out ofthe Successor Agency, but at some point these cost may need to be borne by the
General Fund.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Authority adopt Resolution No. HA 2012
_: Adopting the First Amendment to the Annual Appropriation Resolution No. HA 2012-02
to Appropriate $975,474 to be Paid under Protest from the Almond Gardens Fund.

ATTACHrv1ENTS: .

I. Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents.

2. Resolution No. HA 2012-_: Adopting the First Amendment to the Annual
Appropriation Resolution No. HA 2012-02 to Appropriate $975,474 to be Paid under
Protest from the Almond Gardens Fund.

6



Attachment 1

Fund 907 (Almond Gardens Apartments)

ITEM 6
ATTACHMENT 1

Petty Cash

Restricted Cash

Operating Reserves

Security Deposits

Security Deposits - CD

Replacement Reserves

Rent Receivable

Prepaid Insurance

Prepaid Expense

Total

7

$ 200

$ 814,682

$ 2,418

$ 3,647

$ 21,372

$ 132,147

$ 237

$ 36S

$ 406

$ 975,474



8



ITEM 6

A,'RTACHMENT 2

RESOLUTION NO. HAl012-

A RESOLUTION OF THE SUISUN CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY
ADOPTING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

RESOLUTION NO. HA2012-02 TO APPROPRIATE $975,474 TO BE PAID UNDER
PROTEST FROM THE ALMOND GARDENS FUND

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SUISUN CITY HOUSING AUTHORITY:

THAT Section 907 ofPmt II ofthe Annual Appropriation Resolution No. 2012-02 be and is hereby
mnended as follows:

Increase!
(Decrease)

""

TO: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Affordable Housing

TOTAL Section 907

$ 975,474

$ 975,474

THAT account titles and numbers requiring adjustment by this Resolution are as follows:

Sources Uses
Redeveve10pment Dissolution Remittance

Revenues:
AlC No. 907-00000-3480 Retained Emuings $ 975,474 $

Appropriations:
AlC No. 907-93510-3480 RDA Dissolution Payment $ $ 975,474

Total "",,$~~~- $ 975,474

THAT the purpose is to appropriate funds for the payment under protest to the County Auditor
Controller in accordance with the State DepaItment ofFinance determination ofthe aIllount due
pursuant to its fmding regarding the Due Diligence Review ofthe Low- and Moderate-Income Housing

ADOPTED AND PASSED at a regular meeting of the Suisun City Housing Authority duly held on the
18th day ofDecember, 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSIONERS

WITNESS my hand and seal of the said Housing Authority this 18th day ofDecember 2012.

Linda Hobson, CMC
Secretary

9



10



ITEM 7

MINUTES

REGULAR :MEETING OF THE

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY,

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012

7:00P.M.

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS --701 CIVIC CENTERBOULEVMID - S1JISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA

ROLLCALL
Mayor I Chairman Sanchez called the Meeting to order at 7:00 PM with Council I Board
Members Day, Derting, Hudson, Segala and Mayor Sanchez present.
Pledge ofAllegiance was led by Council I Board Member Derting.
Invocation was given by City Manager Bragdon.

PUBLIC COMMENT
(Requests by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on thiS
agenda per California Government Code §54954.3 allowing 3 minutes to each speaker).

G. Duke spoke about receiving a ticket because he is handicap and stated his trailer was parked on a
surface. Item was referred to City Manager.

George Guynn commented on the grand jury's report regarding the treasurer, hoped Council would act on
treasurer's benefits and expressed concern abont the Sewer Board members attending conferences and
spending taxpayer's money.

Davod Harrispm expressed his sincere thanks for Council Member Derting's great job on the City
Council for eight years and invited everyone to attend the Solano pancake breakfast on December 15.

Lawrence Woods congratnJated newly elected Council Member WIlson and expressed concerned about
constmction ofWalMart and the lack ofhaving a checkout line for people with disabilities. .

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION - None
(Any items on this agenda ihat might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers
should be identified at this time.)

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINT:MENTS - None
(presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).

CONSENT CALENDAR

Joint Citv Council I Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency I Housing Authority

1. Council/Agency Approval of the Minutes of the Regular and/or Special Meetings of the
Suisun City Council, Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency, and Housing
Authority held on l~ove:tnber 20, 2012 - (Hobson).

11



December 4, 2012 City Council f Successor Agency f Hous~ Authority

ITEM 7

Page 2

City Council

2. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-97: Reciting the Fact of the General Municipal
Election Held on November 6, 2012, Declaring the Results and Such Other Matters as
Provided by Law - (Hobson).

Motioned by Council f Board Member Derting and seconded by Council / Board
Member Segala to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Presentation ofAward ofAppreciation to Council Member Derting.

Mayor Pro Tem Hudson read and presented Council Member Derting with a plaque of
appreciation for his eight years on the City Council. Council Member Derting stated it had
been an honor to serve the City and thanked everyone for their support.

4. Presentation ofAward ofAppreciation to City Treasurer McMurry.

Council Member Segala read and presented City Treasurer McMurry with a plaque of
appreciation for her twenty-eight years as City Treasurer. Treasurer McMurry thanked
everyone for their support.

5. Oath ofOffice ofCity Council Members, City Clerk and City Treasurer.

a. Administer the Oath ofOffice to City Clerk Linda Hobson.
b. Administer the Oath ofOffice to Council Member Mike Segala.
c. Administer the Oath ofOffice to Council Member Lori Wilson.
d. Administer the OathofOffice to City Treasurer Mike McMurry .

- _.,-._,---- - --. -_ ..._-"-_._ .." ..__ .,'.. _._---~-~----- ------.------ -.--

Supervisor President Seifert administered the Oath of Office to newly elected Council
Member Wilson.

Mayor Sanchez administered the Oath of Office to elected City Clerk Hobson.

Mayor Sanchez administered the Oath ofOffice to elected City Council Member Segala.

Mayor Sanchez administered the Oath ofOffice to newly elected City Treasurer McMurry.

7:29 PM - Mayor Snchez recessed the meeting to have refreshments.

7:46 PM- Mayor Sanchez reconvened the meeting.

ROLL CALL OF NEWLY SEATED COUNCIL
Mayor Sanchez reconvened the City Council and asked for roll call. Council / Board Members
Day, Hudson, Segala, Wilson, and Mayor Sanchez were present.

.,....,_~_~..".. ..... ~,...,.,...-......." .,...".-.'~_-.-;~,..,... ""'.,.- ~"""'.,....,.c." ~ ,...,...,-..---....... .,.,y.. _.;;=:--y._--

'LU1~Zi1..J.:.ll.,;.1 U!t1 ll~ .!.:!Jrr.J!.i~ .ll~U .!~I.Lft.!I.Ur~ = l~on.e

(Any items on this agenda that might be ° conflict ofinterest to 011Y Councilmembers I Boardrnembers
should be identified at this time.)

PRESENTATIONS/APPOINTMENTS
(presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments).

6. Approving Appointment ofSuisun City Mayor Pro Tem - (Sanchez).

12



December 4, 2012 City Council I Successor Agency I Housing Authority

ITEM 7

Page 3

Motioned by Mayor Sanchez and seconded by Council Member Day to appoint Council
Member Hudson to be Mayor Pro Tem. Motion carried unanimously.

CONSENT CALENDAR

7. Council Adoption ofResolutiou No. 2011 98: Accepting the Senior Center ReroofProject as
Complete and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion with the
Solano County Recorder - (Kasperson).

Motioned by Council I Board Member Day and seconded by Council I Board Member
Hudson to approve the Consent Calendar. Mlltio!Jl c!llTied unammollsly.

GENERAL BUSINESS

City Council

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012-99: Supporting the Solano County City-County
Coordinating Council's Submission of the Solano County Subregional Housing Allocation to
the Association of Bay Area Governments on behalf of the County of Solano and the
Determination and Assignment of Final Allocations of the S1,lbregional Housing Allocations
within Solano County. - (Wooden).

Motioned by Council Member Segala and seconded by Mayor Sanchez to adoption
Resolution No. 2012-99. Motion carried by the following vote:
AYES: Council Members Day, Segala, Wilson, Sanchez
NOES: Council Member Hudson

9. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2012·100: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Successor Memorandum of Understanding on Provision of Animal Care Services between
the County of Solano and Solano County Cities - (Dadisho).

Motioned by Council Member Day and seconded by Council Member Hudson to adopt
Resolution No. 2012-100. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC IlEARlNGS: None

REPORTS: (Informational items only.)

10. City ManagerlExecutive Director/Staff

11. Mayor/Council-ChairlBoardmembers

Council / Board Member Segala stated Suisun City had aced out Fairfield on holiday celebration
and advised history ofSolano 2013 calendars were on sale for $10 at Lawler House.

Council / Board Member Hudson complimented staff for a great job on Christmas tree lighting,
for coming in2nd place in Nat Night Out, and reported Patches had an article about Suisun City
not raising taxes.

Council / Board Member Sanchez complimented staff on Christmas tree lighting , and advised
attemding McDonald Event at Kroc Center.

13



December 4, 2012 City Council! Successor Ageucy ! Housing Authoritx

ITEM 7

Page 4

Council! Board Member Day stated Suisun City had been able to manager money better than
other cities therefore there was no need to raise taxes, complimented the BID and the City for a
glorious Christmas in Old Town.

Council! Board Member Wilson commented on Christmas celebration commented on the lack of
lit bulbs, suggested bulbs be replaced., stated Foundation was accepting applications to serve.

Council! Board Member Segala gave a shout to the Travis Jets for winning championship.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mayor Sanchez adjourned the City Council meeting at 9:18 PM.

Linda Hobson, CMC
City Clerk

14



ITEM 9

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL

MEETING DATE: December 18,2012

CITY AGENDA ITEM: Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2012-_: Approving a Complete
Streets Policy.

FISCAL IMPACT: The potential fiscal impact on the General Fund would depend on the nature
of additional cost to future transportation projects in the City based on the inclusion of additional
complete streets elements not contemplated in the City's project design. Since the City has been
implementing complete streets elements in its tranSportation projects, it is not anticipated that the
fiscal impact would be more than minimal. The City would not be eligible to apply for most
federal and state transportation grants if a policy is not adopted by January 31, 2013. In
particular, since adoption of this policy is required for OBAG funding, if it is not approved the City
would not be eligible for $356,000 (a fonuula driven grant) targeted to resurface Walters Road.

BACKGROUND: In the early 2000's, the State of California issued the first Complete Streets
direction in Caltrans Deputy Directive 64 (later revised in 2008). The Deputy Directive states:

The Department is actively engaged in implementing its complete streets policy in all
planning, programming, design, construction, operations, and maintenance activities and
products on the State Highway System. Further, successful long-term implementation of this
policy is intended to result in: .

• More options for people to go from one place to another.
• Less traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions.
• More walkable communities (with healthier, more active people).
• Fewer barriers for older adults, children, and people with disabilities.

In June 2006, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted regional policies for
the accommodation of non-motorized travelers. One such policy, adopted in MTC Resolution
No. 3765, requires the creation and implementation of a checklist that promotes the routine
acco=odation of non-motorized travelers in project planning and design. Partner agencies are
required to complete this checklist prior to submitting projects to MTC. The checklist is
intended for implementation at the earliest project conception or design phase, so that pedestrian
and bicycle consideration is included in the project budget. MTC has designated the countywide
BicyclelPedestrian AdvisOlY Committees (BPACs) as the entities responsible for reviewing the
repOlied accommodations. Responses given on the checklist do not affect eligibility for MTC
programs.

In 2008 legislation was passed (AB 1358, known as The Complete Streets Act) that requires
cities and counties to comply with implementing Complete Streets Policies in their General
Plans. The City of Suisun City's General Plan consultant (ABCOM) has anticipated
incorporating policy language in the Circulation Element of the General Plan Update to comply
with this Conlplete Streets legislation.

PREPARED BY:
REVIEWED BY:
APPROVED BY:

</ i
. John Keams, Associate Planner ::s~

April Wooden, Community Development Director \l<,»
15 Suzanne Bragdon, City Manager s: y



ITEM 9

The legislation imposes certain requirements on local jurisdictions in their updates of local
General Plans by adding the following language to Government Code Section 65302(b)(2):

(A) Commencing January 1, 2011, upon any substantial revision of the Circulation
Element, the legislative body shall modifY the Circulation Element to plan for a balanced,
multimodal transportation network that meets the needs of all users of the streets, roads,
and highways for safe and convenient travel in a matmer that is suitable to the rural,
suburban, or urban context ofthe general plan.

(8) For the purposes of this paragraph, "users of streets, roads, and highways" means
bicyclists, children, persons with disabilities.

On December 11, 2012, the Suisun City Planuing Commission reviewed and recommended City
Council approval of a Complete Streets Policy. Generally, Planuing Commission comments and
questions centered around two topics:

.. The tie between a Complete Streets Policy and the ultimate policy direction in the
Circulation Element ofthe General Plan Update.

.. A desire to ensure that the City was planuing for a variety of transportation modes in the
construction offuture transportation improvements.

Upon staff assurance that the policy could be modified atld/or expanded in the new Circulation
Element, the Con11fiission adopted theresolutibhTecoIJlIJieIiding City Council approval of the
Complete Streets Policy.

STAFF REPORT: The term "Complete Streets" describes a comprehensive, integrated
transportation network with infrastructure and desigu that allows safe and convenient travel
along and across streets for aU users, inCluding pedes1i"ians,oicycIisis, persons with disa5iIiileS~--

motorists, movers of commercial goods, users and operators of public transportation, seniors,
children, youth, atid fatuilies.

Complete Streets Guidance

MTC has adopted a policy consistent with CaltratlS Deputy Directive 64 which requires the
adoption of a Complete Streets Policy by each jurisdiction that seeks to receive regional or state
transportation funding through MTC. MTC also requires local Congestion Management Agencies
(CMAs) to review transportation grant funding applications from local jurisdictions, for such
funding progratns as the OBAG program, for compliance with this Complete Streets Policy
implementation requirement. The Solano Transportation Authority (STA) is the CMA for Solano
County. Unlike the set of criteria which STA adopted to assist in evaluating OBAG funding
applications (for exatnple, the criteria based on a local jurisdiction's acceptance of greater than its
proportionate share of RHNA allocation), the adoption of a Complete Streets Policy is a "bright
line" test for eligibility for transportation fi1ndingo l!!!~~di£ti{'lns -"ivh:ich h~~7~ n~t_~_!l~nt~iI s~~('_h_ ~

policy are ineligible to apply fer funding.

STA is requiring that each jurisdiction that intends to compete for One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)
funds must either atnend or adopt a General Plan Circulation Element that complies with the
California Complete Streets Act of2008 (AB 1358) or adopt a resolution that incorporates specific
Complete Streets policies. The General Plan adoptionlatnendment or adoption of the resolution
must be completed by the jurisdiction's governing body not later than January 31,2013.

16



ITEM 9

Suisun City Best Practices

In planning for and constructing transportation projects, the City of Suisun City cUlTently makes
every effort to apply Complete Street elements to its projects. E~amples of City-completed projects
that have included such elements include Sunset Avenue and Jepson Parkway. Examples of
privately constructed projects that incorporate Complete Streets elements include Lawler Ranch
Parkway (Lawler Ranch Subdivision) and Charleston Street (peterson Ranch). If the Complete
Streets Policy had been in effect when these projects were designed it is unlikely that it would have
affected project design and construction. Complete streets elements have been incorporated in
many projects completed within the City, as shown by the examples described in the table below.

EXAMPLE PROJECTS
Project Name Curb Ramps Bicycle Lanes Bicycle Route Sidewalks
Sunset Avenue X X X
JepsonPk,wy X X X
Lawler Ranch Pk,wy X X X
Charleston Street X X X

Policy Development

In addition to putting in place the required policies, MrC is encouraging jurisdictions to develop
the best policy that fits within the context of their local ama in consultation with affected
departments and stakeholders, going beyond the required elements to accommodate all users of the
roadway network. While the City has often implemented complete streets elements as its past
practice, there are existing streets that not only do not include these elements, but also have
insufficient right-of-way to construct them in the future. Examples include Chyrl Way, Avalon
Way, and Wesley Street. Ifthe Complete Streets Policy is adopted, approving such designs in the
fhture would be inconsistent with the policy. To assist a local jurisdiction in developing its
resolution, MTC provided a sample resolution (Attachment 2) that was intended to provide
guidance for jurisdictions as they developed their individual policies.

Looking beyond the CUlTent grant cycle, it is anticipated that the 2015 round of One Bay Area Grant
funding will require a local jurisdiction to update the Circulation Element of its General Plan
consistent with the Complete Streets Act in order to maintain eligibility for these funds. Staff
anticipates that the Circulation Element of the City's General Plan will be updated before the 2015
funding round.

MTC has identified nine required elements that must be included in each jurisdiction's complete
streets policy (Attachment 2). These nine elements include:

.. Complete streets serving all users.

.. Context sensitivity.

.. Complete streets routinely addressed by all departments.
" All projects and phases.
" Plan consultation.
" Street network/connectivity.
" Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee consultation.
" Evaluation.
@ Process for detellnining exceptions.

17



ITEM 9

The ninth required element, the exceptions provision, has been carefully tailored by staff to
respond to local context. It is intended to provide a means ofmaking exceptions to the Complete
Streets Policy under certain circlllllstances. In order to approve an exception, the Council would
be required to make written findings in each instance in which it is considered that the Complete
Streets Policy may not be appropriate. These findings would include determining that a project
involves only maintenance; that it is intended to address an immediate safety concem; that would
result in cost of implementation of complete streets elements that is excessive and
disproportionate in relation to the overall project cost; or that the implementation of this policy is
not practically feasible or cost-effective because of adverse environmental impacts, impacts on
neighboring land uses, the cost of right-of-way acquisition, or similar issues. These findings
must be prepared and executed by the City's Public Works Director and Community
Development Director for each project that cannot accommodate all provisions of this policy.

The exception provision can be used to modify a project to eliminate the requirement for the
inclusion of any or ceJtain complete streets elements. For illustrative purposes, an example of a
project that might require an exception to not include any bicycle or pedestrian complete streets
elements would be a project involving improvements to an existing street that does not have
sidewalks and does not have additional right-of-way available to accommodate sidewalks and
bike lanes (e.g., Chyrl Way). An example of a project that might require an exception to not
include certain bicycle or pedestrian complete streets elements might be a project like the Main
Street reconstruction, since bicycle and·pede·sman accollliliodation was already provided on the
promenade, but improved disabled access ramps were included at intersections.

The City has been working to include complete streets elements in transportation projects as its past
practice for some time. The inclusion of acco=odation for all roadway users helps to create an
interconnected and inviting community. Now that the adoption of a complete streets policy is a
tequiremenCf6rtraiispoffiihon :tU:nding tllroughoirt tlie-State and region, thefiscaI iillpacfof riot -
adopting such a policy creates a heavy burden on transportation improvement construction at the
local level.

RECOMMENDATION: It is reco=ended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2012
_: Adopting a Complete Streets Policy.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. ResolutionNo. 2012-_: Adopting a Complete Streets Policy.

2. MTC Sample Resolution.

18



ITEM 9
ATTACHMENT 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-_

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SUISUN CITY RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL

ADOPTION OF A COMPLETE STREETS POLICY

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City Planning Commission recommended City Council
approval of a Complete Streets Policy at its regular meeting of December 11, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the term "Complete Streets" describes a comprehensive, integrated
transportation network with infrastructure and design that allows safe and convenient travel
along and across streets for all users, including pedestrians, bicyclists, persons with disabilities,
motorists, movers of commercial goods, users and operators of public transportation, seniors,
children, youth, and families; and

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City acknowledges the benefits and value for the public
health and welfare of reducing vehicle miles traveled and increasing transportation by walking,
bicycling, and public transportation; and

WHEREAS, each jurisdiction that applies for funding through the One Bay Area Grant
(OBAG) program must either have a General Plan that includes Complete Street Policies or have
adopted a resolution incorporating Complete Street Policies; and

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City has taken a proactive stance by regularly
incorporating complete streets elements into its ongoing transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City recognizes that the planning and coordinated
development of Complete Streets infrastructure provides benefits for local governments in the
areas ofinfrastructure cost savings, public health, and environmental sustainability; and

WHEREAS, the State of Califomia has emphasized the importance of Complete Streets
by enacting the California Complete Streets Act of 2008 (also known as AB 1358), which
requires that when a city or county revises general plans, it identifies how it will provide for the
mobility needs of all users ofthe roadways, as well as through Deputy Directive 64, in which the
California Department of Transportation explained that it "views all transportation improvements
as opportunities to improve safety, access, and mobility for all travelers in Califomia and
recognizes bicycle, pedestrian, and transit modes as integral elements of the transportation
system"; and

WHEREAS, the California Global Wanning Solutions Act of 2006 (known as AB 32)
sets a mandate for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in California and the Sustainable
Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008 (also known as SB 375) requires emissions
reductions through coordinated regional planning that integrates transportation, housing, and
land-use policy; and

WHEREAS, significant increases in travel by public transit, bicycling, and walking will
help to achieve the requirements of the mandates of AB 32 and SB 375; and

19



ITEM 9
ATTACHMENT 1

WHEREAS, numerous California counties, cities, and agencies have adopted Complete
Streets policies and legislation in order to further the health, safety, welfare, economic vitality,
and environmental well-being of their communities; and

WHEREAS, in light of the foregoing benefits and considerations, the City of Suisun
City wishes to improve its commitment to Complete Streets and desires that its streets form a
comprehensive and integrated transportstion network promoting safe, equitable, and convenient
travel for all users while preserving flexibility, recognizing community context, and using the
latest and best design guidelines and standards; and

WHEREAS, the City of Suisun City Planning Commission has determined the planning,
design, and construction of improvements for a variety of transportation modes to be of
significant consideration in local transportstion policy development.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Suisun
City, State of California, as follows:

1. That the City Council of the City of Suisun City adopts the Complete Streets Policy
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and made part ofthis Resolution; and

2. That the Complete Streets policies and principles are consistent with the California
Complete Streets Act of 2008 (AB 1358); and

3. That the Complete Streets Policy adopted by this resolution will be incorporated in the
next substantial revision of the City of Suisun City General Plan Circulation Element.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting ofthe City Council ofthe City of Suisun
Cit)'ClUly lierd on 'l'uesuay,tileT8th·ofDecerilber 2012o)'the-followmg vote: ~--_.

AYES: Councilmembers:
NOES: Councihnembers:
ABSENT: Councilmembers:
ABSTAIN: Councihnembers:

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 18th day of December 2012.

Linda Hobson, CMC
City Clerk

20



ITEM 9
ATTACHMENT·l

Exhibit A

This Complete Streets Policy was adopted by Resolution No. by the City Council of
the City of Suisun City on , 2012.

COMPLETE STREETS POLICY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY

A. Complete Streets Principles.

1. Complete Streets Serving All Users. All transpOliation improvements shallbe planned,
designed, constructed, operated and maintained to support safe and convenient access for all
users and increase mobility for walking, bicycling, and transit use, wherever possible, while
promoting safe and accessible operations for all users, including pedestrians, bicyclists, persons
with disabilities, motorists, movers of commercial goods, users and operators of public
transportation, seniors, children, youth, and families.

2. Context Sensitivity. The planning and implementation of transportation projects shall
reflect conditions within and sunounding the project area, whether the area is a residential or
business district, or urban, suburban, or rural. In project planning, design, and construction of
Complete Streets projects, the City shall work with residents, merchants, and other stakeholders
to ensure that a strong sense ofplace ensues.

3. Complete Streets Routinely Addressed by All Departments. All relevant departments
and agencies of the City of Suisun City shall work towards making Complete Streets practices a
routine part of everyday operations; approach every relevant project, program, and practice as an
opportunity to improve streets and the transportation network for all categories of users; and
work in coordination with other departments, agencies, and jurisdictions to maximize
opportunities for Complete Streets, connectivity, and cooperation. Potential Complete Streets
opportunities could apply to projects such as transportation projects, road rehabilitation, new
development, consttuction ofutility infrastructure, etc.

4. All Projects and Phases. This policy applies to all roadway projects, including those
involving new construction, reconstruction, retrofit, repaving, rehabilitation, and changes in the
allocation ofpavement space on an existing roadway, as well as those that involve new privately
bnilt roads and easements intended for public use.

B. Implementation.

5. Plan Consultatiou. Any proposed improvements shall be evaluated for consistency with
all local bicycle, pedestrian, andior transit plans, as well as any other plans that affect the right
of-way.

6. Street Network/Counectivity. The transportation system should provide a connected
network of facilities accommodating all modes of travel. This includes looking for opportunities
for repurposing rights-of-way to enhance connectivity for cyclists, pedestrians, and transit users.
A well-cormected network should include non-motorized connectivity to schools, parks,
co=ercial areas, civic destinations and regional non-motorized networks on both publicly
owned roads/land and private development.

21



ITEM 9
ATTACIiMENT 1

7. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee Consultation. Input shall be solicited
from local bicycle and pedestrian advisory committees (BPACS) or similar advisory groups, in
an early project-development phase to verifY bicycle and pedestrian needs related to the project.

8. Evaluation. The City of Suisun City shall establish a set of measures necessary to
evaluate the implementation of this policy and shall develop the means to collect data necessary
to perform such evaluation. All relevant departments shall use these measures and shall collect
the required data in order to evaluate, on an aunual basis, the implementation of this policy.

C. Exceptions.

9. Process for Determining Exceptions. Written findings that a project involves only
maintenance; is intended to address an immediate safety concern; that would result in cost of
implementation of complete streets elements that is excessive and disproportionate in relation to
the overall project cost; or that the implementation of this policy is not practically feasible or
cost-effective because of adverse environmental impacts, irripacts on neighboring land uses, the
cost of right-of-way acquisition, or similar issues, shall be prepared and executed by the City's
Public Works Director and Community Development Director for each project that cannot
accommodate all provisions of this policy. These written fIndings shall be available for public
review at least 10 days prior to the initiation of the project, except for emergency maintenance or
safety activities.

22



ITEM .9.
ATTACHMENT 2

Sample MTC Complete Streets Sample Resolution
for Bay Area Cities and Counties

ChangeLab Solutions & M1fC
http~l/cham!e-lahsolutions.org!

Resolmion No. _

A RESOLUTION OF TIlE [City Council1Board of Supervisors) OF THE fJurisdktion) ADOP'TlNG
A COMFUITESTIlliETSPOUCY

WHEREAS, the term "Complete Streets" describes a comprehensive, integ,ated transportation network
with infrastructure and design that aJlows safe and convenient travel along and across streets" for all users,
including pe.destrians, bicyclists, persons with disabilities. motorists j movers of commercial goods, users
and operntors of public transponation~ seniors. cbildren~ youth, and families [insert other significant local
users ifdesired, e.g. drivers ofagricultural vehicles, emergency vehicles, orfreightJ~

WHEREAS, [Jurisdiction] acknowledges the benefits and value for the public health and welfate of
reducing vehicle miles !raveled and increasing transportation by walling, bicycling, and public
transportation;

WHEREAS, [Jurisdiction] ,ecogrdzes that the planning and coordinated development of Complete Streets
infrasnuctm.'"e provides benefits for local governments in the areas of infrastrElcture cost savings; public
health; and environmental sustainability;

WHEREAS, the State of California has emphasized the importance of Complete Streets by enacting the
California Complete Streets Act of 2008 (also known as AB 1358), which requires that when cities or
counties revise general plans, they identify how they will provide for the mobility needs of al! users of the
roadways, as well as throngh Deputy Directive 64, in which the Calli'omia Department of Transportation
explained th-.at it <'views- all transportation improvements as opportunities to improve safety. access. and
mobility foral! travelers in Calli'ornia and ,ecognizes bicycle, pedestrian, and transit modes as integ,al
elements of the transportation system";

WHEREAS, the Califomia Global Watming Solutions Act of 2006 (lmown as AB 32) sets a mandate for
the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions in California, and the Sustainable Communities- and Climate
Protection Act of 2008 (known as SB 375) requires emissions reductions through coordinated regional
planning that integrates transportatiou, housing, and land-use policy, and achieving the goals of these laws
will require significant increases iII travel by public transi~ bicycling, and walking;

WHEREAS.,. numerous: Californiacounties, cities, and agencies have adopted Complete Streets policies
and legislation in order to furthe' the health, safety, welfare, ecouomio vitality, and environmeutal well
being oftheir communities~

WHEREAS, [Jurisdictiou] therefore, in light of fue foregoiug benefits and considerations, wishes to
improve its conuuitm"llt to Complete Streets and desires that its streets form a comprehensive and
integrated transportation network promoting safe, equitable, and convenient travel for all users while
preserving flexibility, recognizing commuuity context, and using the latest and best design guideliues and
standards;

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED, by the [City CouncillBoard of SUDervi,ors] of [Jurisdiction],
State ofCalifomia, as follows:

L Thatthe Uurisdiction] adopts the Complete Streets Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A, and
made part of this Resolution~ and that said exhihit.is hereby approved and adopted.

23



t. ....J:~E11 9; .
ATTACHMENT 2

2. That the next substantial revisiou of the [JurisdictiouJGeneral Pilln circulation shall incorporate
Complete Streets policies and principles consi,tent with the Caliionii. CODlJllete Streets Act of 2008 CAB
1358) and with the Complete Streets Policy adopted by this resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the [City ConncillBoard ofSupervisors' of the [Jurisdiction], State of
California, ou , 20C, by the following yote:

Attachment: Exhibit A

24



., ITEM 9 .
ATTACHMENT 2

ExWbitA

This Complete Streets Policy was adopted by Resolution No.~__~by the rCi!'! C01tacil/Board of
SupervisorsJ of the [Jurisdiction) on ,20L

COMPLETE STREETS POLICY OF [.JURISDICTION]

A. Complete Streets P,inciples

1. Complete Streets Serving All Users. [Jurisdiction] expresses its commitment to creating and
maintaining Complete Streets that provide safe, cornfol'''lble, and convenient travel along and
across streets (inclltding stree", roads, highways, bridges, and other portions of the transportatiou
system) through a comprehensive, integrated rrans.portation network that serves all categories of
users, including pedestrians, bicyclists, persons with disabilities,. motorists, movers of commercial
goods, ltsers and operatoIs ofpublic transportation, seniol.", children, youth, and families [hwert
other significant local users ifdesired, e.g. drivers ofagricultural vehicles, emergency-vehlcles,
freight, etc.].

2. Context Sensitivity. In planning and implementing street projecOt, departments and agencies of
[Jurisdiction) shllil maintain sensitivity to local conditions inboth residential and business districts
as well as urban, suburban, and rural areas, and shall work with residents, merchants, .and other
stakeholders to ensure that a strong sense of place ensues. Improvements that will be. considered
inclnde sidewalks, shared use paths, bicycle lanes, bicycle routes, paved shoulders, street trees and
laudscaping, planting strips, accessible curb ramps, crosswalks, refuge islands, pedestriau signals,
signs, street furniture, bicycle parking facilities, pnblic transportation stops and facilities, transit
priority signalization, and other features assisting in the provision of safe travel for all users. such
as traffic calming circles, transit bulb outs. and road diets L as well as other features such as insert
other accommodarions ifdesired) [7 and those features identified in insert name oj
Perlestrian/Bicycle MaJIter Plan ifit exists].

3. Complete Streets Routinely Addressed by All Departments. AU relevant deparlll1ents and
agencies of [Jurisdiction] slmIl work towards making Complete Streets practice' a routine part of
everyday operations. approach every relevant proj~ct, program, and practice as an Dpportunity to
improve streets and the t.ra:o.sportatroll network for all categories ofusers. and WDrk in coordination
with other departr:ne-nts. agencies. and jurisdictions to maximize opportunitie3 for Complete
Streets~ connectivity, and cooperation. The following projects provide opportunities: pavement
resurfacing. restriping, accessing above and underground utilities, signalization operations or
modificatioml, and maintenance of landscaping/related feamres_

4. All Projects and Phases. Complete Streets infraEtructure sufficient to enable reasonably safe
!ravel along and across the tight of way for each ~ategory of users shall be incorporated inw all
planning, fundmg. design, approval, and implementation processes for any construction,
reconstrnction. retrofit, JJ.J.Bintenance7 operatiDns. alteration, or repair of streets (including streets,
roads, highways, bridges, and other portions of the u'ansportation system), except that specific
infrastructure for El given category of liset8 may be excluded if an exemption is approved via the
process set forth iu section C. lof I:bis policy.

B. Implementation

I. Plan ConsnJtation and Consistency. Maintenance, planning, and design of projects affecting the
tran.sportation system sball be consistent with local bicycle, pedestrian, transit, multimodal, and
other relevant plans, except that where such consistency cannot be achieved without negative
consequences, consistency shall not be required if the head of the relevant deparnnent provides
writren approval explaining the basis of such deviation. If [Jurisdiction] !uul a Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Commit-tee, stich devIations shall be presented to the Bicycle and Pedest.'i.an
Advisory Committee early in the planning and design stage, to ensure the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Advisory Committee has an opportunity to provide corrunents and recommendations.

25



ITEM 9
ATTACHMENT 2

2. Street NetworkiConnecthity. As feasible, [Jurisdiction] shall incorporate Complete Streets
infrastructure into existing streets to improve the safety and convenience of users and to create
employment, with the particular goal of creating a connected network of facilities accommodating
each category of users. and increasing connectivity across jurisdictional boundaries andfQr
existing and anticipated future areas of travel origination or destination.

3. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Connnittee Consultation. If [Jnrisdiction] has a Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Committee, transportation projects sball be reviewed by the Bicycle and
Pedestrian Advisory Committee early in the planning and design stage, to provide the Bicycle and
Pedesttian Advisory Committee an opportUnity to provide comments and recommendations
regardiog Complete Streets features to be incorporated into the project.

4. Evalnation. All relevant agencies or departments shall perform evaluations of how well1he streets
and transportation network of [Jmismctionl are serving each category of users by.collecting
baseline data and collecting follow-up data on a regular basis.

C. Exemptions

1. Leadership Approval for Exemptions. Projects that seek Complete Streets exemptions must
provide written finding of wby accommodations for all modes 1hat were not included in the project
and signed off by the Public Works Director or equivalent high level staffperson. Projects that llItl

granted exceptions must be made publically available for review. Federal guidance on exceptious
can be found from 1he Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Accommodating Bicycle and
Pedesttian Travel
h!.:tp;/J\V\VW,HI \\'a.Jol ,.!:!.:o\·tlf:n,·lronm'.::~j,t!hicvc!~ plvlc:;hlnj1!f!uid.:lnCell )"'~ !'-!t1 ~L!ithll1,£:J;!tlc:,j!::n.c I'm

26


	Special Meeting Cancelation
	7 p.m. Regular Agenda
	Item 4 - Financial Reporting Award
	Item 5 - All Other Funds DDR
	Item 6 - Response to DOF Determination
	Item 7 - Minutes
	Item 9 - Complete Streets Policy



